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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Fleur Hotels
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies-Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit, total comprehensive income,
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. OQur
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibility
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute

~ of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the

~Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

» The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

e« Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

* In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
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information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

» [If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements’
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally "accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financlal statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess the Board
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsa:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and apprepriate
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to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circurmnstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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)

d)

f)

)

h)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial staternents comply with the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contrels with reference to
standaione financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Qur report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, no remuneration (except sitting fees) has been paid by the Company
to its directors during the year,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

I.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 32(c) to the
standalone financial statements:

ii. The Company did not have any iong-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. Refer Note
42 to the standalone financial statements;

iili.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. Refer Note 45 to the
standalone financial statements;

iv. {(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the note 48{viii) to the financial statements,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s} or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly
or indirectly tend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the note 48(ix) to the financial statements,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided .under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has
not proposed final dividend for the year.

vi, Proviso to Rule 3{1)} of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f.
April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
_ Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 11736 Ww-100018

Rajesh Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 105546
UDIN : 23105546BGXMSES320

\é‘i/Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2023

My,
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT of FLEUR HOTELS
PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of Fleur Hotels Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements based on the internal
control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities Include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderty and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to ohtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
centrols with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing precedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
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assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditer's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s Internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements .

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable asstirance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,
2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to standaione
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financial statements established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal contreol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Chartered

countants

Rajesh Kumar¥agarwal

Partner
Membership No. 105546
UDIN : 23105546BGXMSES320

%/Place: New Detlhi

Date: May 29, 2023

N
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Annexure “B” To The Independent Auditor’'s Report of Fleur Hotels Private
Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (a)(A) The Company has maintained'proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B)The Company has rmalntained proper records showling full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b} The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment
so to cover all the items once every two years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the program certain Property, Plant and Equipment were
due for verification during the year and were physically verified by the
Management during the year. According to the information and explanaticns
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Based on the examination of the confirmation received by us from “Vistra
ITCL (India) Limited” (custodian) on behalf of Yes Bank, “Catalyst
Trusteeship Limited” {custodian) on behalf of Aditya Birla Finance Limited,
Kotak Mahindra Bank, Axis Bank, HDFC Bank and IndusInd Bank in respect
of immovable properties of land and buildings (other than properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in
property, plant and eguipment whose title deeds have been pledged as
security for loans and guarantees are held in the name of the Company as
at the balance sheet date except freehold land and building located at
Andheri Mumbai and Gachibowli Hyderabad admeasuring 5,552.9 sgmt, and
4,168.41 sqmt, respectively whose title deeds are in name of the Meringue
Hotels Private Limited and Nightingale Hotels Private Limited respectively,
erstwhile companies that was merged with the Company under Section 230-
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms of the approval of the National
Company Law Tribunal,

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment
(including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against
the Company as at 31 March 2023 for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and
rules made thereunder.
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(i (a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management
at reasconable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by
the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical
verification of inventories when compared with books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in
aggregate, at points of time during the year, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly
returns or statements comprising lease deposit schedule, cash flow
mismatch statement and unaudited quarterly financials filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the
unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters and
no material discrepancies have been observed.

(i) The Company has not made investments or provided security and advances in
nature of loans to any other entity during the year. The Company has granted
unsecured loans and stood guarantees to wholly owned subsidiaries during the
year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company has provided loans and stood guarantees during the year
and details of which are given below:

Particulars Guarantees (Rs. Loans (Rs in
in lacs) lacs)
A. Aggregate amount granted /provided 2,709.00 17,124.88
during the vyear to Wholly owned
subsidiaries:
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet 40,895.00 17,185.86*
date in respect of Wholly owned
subsidiaries:

*Includes equity component of [oan given to subsidiary as per Ind AS 109
for Rs. 839.89 lakhs and excludes interest accreted on the loan component.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has, during the year, provided guarantees and granted interest free
unsecured loans (refer reporting under clause (iii) (a) above and clause
(iii)(f) below) to wholly owned subsidiaries covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, which, as
explained to us, have been made for meeting working capital
requirements and/or setting up new projects. In respect of these
guarantees provided and loans granted, the terms and conditions are, in
our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest after
considering the purpose for which guarantees are provided and loans have
been granted.
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(iv)

(V)

(vi)

{vii)

{c) The Company has granted loans to wholly owned subsidiaries amounting
to Rs. 17,124.88 lakhs which are repayable on demand. During the year
the Company has not demanded such loan. Having regard to the fact that
the repayment of principal or payment of interest has not been demanded
by the Company, in our opinicn the repayments of principal amounts and
receipts of interest are regular. {Refer reporting under clause (iii){f)
below)

{d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company,
there is no overdue amount remaining cutstanding as at the balance sheet
date.

{a) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year,
has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties. '

(f The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand
amounting to Rs. 17,124.88 lakhs during the year, to its wholly owned
subsidiaries. These loans constitutes 100% of total lcans given by the
Company.

The Company has compiied with the provisions of sections 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of making investments. The Company has
not granted any loans or provided guarantee or security under section 185
of Companies Act 2013. As per section 186 (11) read with schedule VI,
provision for section 186 with respect to grant of locans and providing
guarantees would not apply to the Company as the Company is providing
infrastructural facilities.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed
to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not
applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities
of the Company by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Value
Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the
Company have generally been regularly deposited by it with the
appropriate authorities in all cases during the year. We are
informed that the duty of Custom, service tax, sales tax and duty
of Excise is not applicable to the company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
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(viif)

(ix)

(b)

tax, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which
have not been deposited as on March 31, 2023 on account of
disputes are given below:

Name of | Nature of | Amount Period Forum

Statute Dues Involved (FY) to | where
(Rs. In | which the | dispute is
lacs) amount pending

relates

Service Service 79.34%* | 2007- Central Excise

Tax Rule, | Tax 2012 and Service

1994 Tax Appellate

Tribunal

Income Income 16.53*%* | FY 2016- | CIT (A)

tax Act, | Tax 17

1961

*Net of Rs. 23.10 lakhs paid under protest

** Net of Rs. 10.72 lakhs paid under protest/adjusted against
refund

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that
were surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 during the year.

(a)

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of

loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender during the year.

(b)

(c)

(d)

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority.

On the overall examination of financial statements of the Company,
loans raised during the year have been utilised for payment of
interest and meeting working capital requirements as permitted by
respective banks. According to the information and explanations
given to us by the management, the Company has utilised funds
from internal accruals for investing and granting loans to its wholly
owned subsidiaries. (refer reporting under clause (iii) above)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not
been used during the year for long-term purposes of the Company.
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(e) On overall examination of financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or
associates. According to the information and explanations given to
us by the management, the Company has utilised funds from
internal accruals for investing and granting loans to its wholly
owned subsidiaries. (refer reporting under clause (iii) above)

() The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate
companies.

(x) (a8) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the
year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no
material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year. '

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of
section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date
of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle
blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause
(xii} of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion, and according to the explanation given to us, the Company
is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

(xvii)

{(xviii)

(xix)

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business. ‘

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the
Company during the year.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a),
(b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly
reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year
covered by our audit but had incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 2,994
lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company
during the year,. '

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on - our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.




Deloitte
Haskins & SelisLLP

(xx) The Company has incurred losses during the three immediately preceding
financial years and hence, it is not required to spend any money under
sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP
Charteréq Accountants

Rajesh Kumar‘garwal

Partner
Membership No. 105546
UDIN : 23105546BGXMSES320

\é/Place: New Delhi

Date: May 29, 2023

"



Fleur Hotels Private Limlted
CIN: U551 DL2033PTC207912

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Note Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Rs, in lakhs Rs, in lakhs
ASSETS
Non-current assels
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 1,36,395.54 1,39,903.45
(b} Goodwilll . E - 0.02°
(c) Other intangible assets 3 62,17 102,69
(d) Intangible assets under development 4 277.53 22791
(¢) Right-of-use asset 6 10,733.36 11,377.30
(f) Financial assets 1
(i) Investments 1,12,117,52 1,12,117.52
(#) Loans 2,319.39 2,760.11
(i) Other non-current financial assets 696.83 886.03
{g) Deferred tax assets (net) 18 " -
{h) Non-current tax asscts (net) 8 703.14 571.05
{1} Other non-current assets $ 12,69 119.60
2,63,318.17 2,68,065.68
Cwrrent assets
{a) Inventories 10 424,60 324.00
{b) Financial assets il
(i} Trade receivables 1.874.64 852.10
{1i) Cash and cash equivalents 266,70 1,728.33
(iii} Other bank balances 330.00 -
(iv) Loans 14,476.85 1.455.17
{v) Other ewrrent financial agsets bk 15.34
(c) Other current rsscts 12 1.700.26 1,152.34
. 19.100.82 5,527.28
Total Assels 2,82,418.99 2.73,592.96
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 13(a) 9,245.52 9,245.52
(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 13(b) 53763 537,63
() Other equity 14 1,50,236.08 1,46,659.04
Tatal Equity 1.60,015.23 1,56,442.20
Liabilities
Noa-current liabilities
(a) Finaneial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 97,156.03 94,253.99
(i) Lease liability i6 14,255.60 14,145.90
(b) Provisions . i7 29.79 36.52
1,11.441.42 - 1,08.436.41
Curvent Habillties
(a} Financial Habilities 19
(i) Borrowings 4,866.98 2,437.10
(i1} Leasc liability 87.75 9343
(iii) Trade payables - .
- total outstanding dues of mivro enterprises and small enterprises 563.58 26697
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro entexprises 4,392.62 3,560,88
and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 22392 223.01
(h) Other current Liabilitics 20 680.59 349.60
{c) Provisions 17 142,90 1,383.36
10,958.34 8,714.35
Totat Liabilities 1,22.399.76 1,17,150.76
‘Total Equity and Eiabilities 2.82,418.99 2,73,592.96
Snmmary of significant accounting pelicies 22
The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial staternents, 1 to 49

" As per our report of even date
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
CIN: U55101DL2003PTC207912

Standn!pne Statement of P]'oﬂt and Loss for the year ended March 31,2

023

Note "“For the year ended Por the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs, in lakhs Rs, in lakhs

Revenue from operations 21 37,424.72 18,257.09
Other income 22 126,27 861,70
Total income 37,550.95 19,‘1 18,79
Fxpenses
Cost of food & beverages consumed 23 2,261.42 1,299,31
Employee benetits expense 24 4,990.11 3,105.33
Power and fuel 25(a) 2,557.89 . 1,627,05
Stamp duty expenses 25(b) 478.42 1,525.03
Other expenses 25(c) 9,619.50 5,465.80
Total expenses 19,907.34 i 13,022.52
Profit before finance cost, finance income depreciation 17,643.65 6,090.27
amortization, and tax (EBITDA) (Refer note 2.2 (p))
Finance costs 26 9,972,17 9,218.54
Finance income 27 (331.27) (128.42)
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 . 4,427.70 5,200.85
Trofit/(loss) before tax 3,575.05 (8,194.70)
Tax expense
(1) Current tax 18 - -
(2) Deferred tax 18 - -
Profit/(loss) for the year 3,575.05 (8,194.70)
Other comprehensive income/{loss)
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans 1.98 11.00
[ncome tax effect - -

1.98 11,00
TFotal comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 3,577.03 (8,183.70)
Baming/{loss) per equity share: :
(1) Basic 29 3.65 (8.38)
{2) Diluted 29 3.65 (8.38)

1t049

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date

. Place ; New Delhi
#9/ Date : May 29, 2023

"

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
wels Private Limited

Loy !\

Mﬁﬁm Afitya Madhav Keswani
Managing Director Director
DIN-00002974 DIN—07208901*
N& z
_;:M—*‘ /
Inder Pal Batra SopaldManchanda
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mem no.: F7283

Place ;: New Delht
Date : May 29, 2023




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
CIN: USS10IDLIG03FTC207912

Standaloze Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2823

A, Equity Share Capital
No. of shares Amoimt

Equity shares of Rs, 10 each isswed, subscribed and foffy paid (R in lakhs)

As at April 1, 2021 828.97.692 8.280.77

Tssue of share capital {refer note 13) 95.57.461 955.75.

As at March 31, 2022 9.24.55.153 9.245.52

Issue of share capital - -

As at March 31, 2023 92455 153 9.245.52 .

B. Compulsorily Cenvertible Preference Sharces {Tastruments entirely equity in nature)

Preference shares of Rs, 10 each issaed, subscribed and folly No. of shares Amaunt

paid (Rs in fakhs)

As at April 1, 202% 53.76.340 537.63

Issue of chare dapital - -

As at March 31, 2022 53.76.340 537.63

Issue of share capital - -

As at March 31, 2023 55,76,348 53763

. Other Equity

Far the year ended March 31, 2023 -

Rs in lakhs
Reserves and Sarplus Ttems of OCT Other Equity Reserves and Other Equity
i component of | Component- Surplns
Securifies Preminm Surplus/(Deficit) in the Remeasurement Equity Frefereace | Capleal Reserve
Statement of Profit and gains/{lasses) on Sharc Account®
Lass defined benefit
nhins

Balance as at April 1, 2021 1,65,530.11 (10,061.39 (7.90) 955.73 R358 (710.65) 1,55.798.508
On accoumt of Merger{ Refer Note No.40) - - - {953.75) - 955.75)
Loss for the vear ’ - (8.194.70) - - - - B.194.70)
Other comprebensive moome for fhe vear - - 11.00 - - 11.00
Balance as a8 March 31, 2022 1,65,539.11 {18,256.09) 3.10 - 8358 (710.63) 1,46.659.04
Frofit for the year 3.575.05 - - - - 357305
Orthes comprehensive income for the year - - 1.98 - - 198
Balance 35 at March 31, 2023 1.65.530.11 (14.681.454) 508 - 83.58 (710.65) 1,50,236.08
* Refer Note. No.14
. Thiz accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 14049

Place : New Dclhi
Trate : May 20, 2023
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
CIN: U55101DL2003PTC207912

Standalone Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax 3,575.05 (8,194.70)
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile. profit/(loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses ‘ 4,427.70 5,200.85
Unwinding of discount on security deposits - (1,236.31)
Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments) (331.27) (128.42)
Finance costs (fncluding fair vaiue change in financial instruments} 9,714.91 9,107.02
Gain on Termination of Lease - (323.67)
Provision for gratuity 11.70 11.21
Provision for leave encashment 7.00 (11.98)
Government incentive scheme (86.61) -
Excess provision/-credit balances written back (19.84) (79.15)
Net gain on sale of property plant and equipment {6.26) -
Lease rental waiver - (393,71
Operating profit before working capital changes: 17,292.38 3,951.08
Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/Decreae in trade receivables (1,022.54) 393,79
(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances and other cutrent assets (387.36) 2,160,46
Increase in inventories {100.60) 40.37)
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities and provisions (215.84) 433.94
Cash Generated from Operations 15,566.04 6,808,90
Direct taxes pald {net of refunds) (231,17} 21.94
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 15,334.87 6,920.84
B. ~ Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of propt::rty,' plant and equipnllent (adj.ustment of intangible under (206.19) (4,043.20)
development, capital advances and capital creditors)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 7.44 -
Purchase of investment in subsidiaty companies - (6,999.99)
Short term loans {given)/repaid (1o)/by subsidiaries (12,580.96) (1,457.72)
(Investment in)/redemption of fixed deposits (315.00) -1,368.50
Net gain/ (loss) on sale of current investments - 0.01
Interest reccived . 545.18 12841
Net Cash flow used in investing activities (B) (12,549.53) 11,003.99)
C  Cash flows used in financing activities
Payment towards reduction of outstanding Iease liabilitics {1,271.10) (1,553.42)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 5,490.00 13,972.53.
Repayment of long term borrowings (d14.40) (5,210.78)
Proceeds/(repayment) from short term borrewings 175,75 36,76
Interest paid (8,227.22) (7,15%.07)
Net Cash flow (used in) from financing activities (C) (4,246.97) _ 8602

(This space has been intentionally lefit blank)



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
CIN: U55101DL2003PTC207912

Standalone Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2023
S For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in Jakhs

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) (1,461.63) (3,997.13)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,728.33 5,725.46
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 266.70 1,728.33
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11)
Cash on Hand 20,36 18.51
Balances with scheduled banks in

- Current accounts 246.34 1,375.82

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 330.00
Total cash and cash equivalents ' 166,70 1,728.33

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

'As per our repott of even date

For Deloife uskins & Sells LLP

Place : New Delhi
Date - May 29, 2023

“y
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Chief Financial Officer

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 29, 2023




Fleur. Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1. Corporate Information

Fleur Hotels Private Limited (the Company) is a private Company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered
office of the company is located at Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi-
110037.

The principal activities of the Company is to carry out business of developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc. under the brand
name of Lemon Tree Hotel, Lemon Tree Premier, Red Fox Hotel and Aurika.

The financial statements are approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors
on May 29, 2023.

2 Basis of preparation
2.1 Significant accounting policies

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS), and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified) The
Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost
convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost (refer note 34 below)

Accounting policies have been consistently applied.

" The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(2) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
“months after the reporting period ‘

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-ciurrent.
Defen‘ed tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

~(b) Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Presentation currency is the currency in which the Company’s financial
statements are presented. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity
primarily generates and expends cash. All the financial information presented in Indian
Rupees (INR) has been rounded to the nearest of lakhs rupees, except where otherwise stated.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the iransaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determiined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in Other comprehenswc income (“OCI”) or proﬁt or loss are also
recogmsed in OCT or profit or loss respectively).




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(c) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date except to
certain instruments which are measured at Amortized cost/ historic cost.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to tranisfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
* participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the assef in its highest and best use,

‘The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. '

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities _
e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the Jowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial asscts measured at fair
value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
management sclects external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management
decides, after discussions with the Company s external valuers, which valuation techniques
and inputs to use for each case.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and

~ liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the -
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are -
given in the relevant notes.

e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 31)
s Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 34)
» Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 34)

{d) Revenue recognitien

The Company earns revenue primarily from the business of carrying developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc. under the brand
of Lemon Tree Premier, Lemon Tree Hotel, Red Fox Hotel and Aurika.

The Company apply Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” which establishes
a comprehensive framework to depict timing and amount of revenue to be recognised.

In arrangements for room revenue and related services, the Company has applied the guidance
in Ind AS 115 for recognition of Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the
revenue recognition criteria for each distinet performance obligation. The arrangements with
customers generally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and related services as
distinet performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has
meagured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a coniract at its relative
standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is
the best evidence of its standalone selling price.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the
amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance

" obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable
consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of
the contract. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to
determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a
principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below
must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Value added tax WAT)/Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its

own account, Rather, it is fax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on /""‘""-\

behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue. ‘2"‘)1 ELS‘




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Rooms, Restaurant, Banquets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Value Added Taxes (VAT)
/Goods and Service Tax(GST) and Luxury Tax. Difference of revenue over the billed as at the
year-end is carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

- Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests Sales are stated exclusive of VAT/Goods and
Service Tax(GST).

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where approprlate to the net carrymg amount of the financial asset or 11ab1hty Interest
income is included in finance income in the income statement.

Dividends

- Revenue is recognized when the Company s right to receive the payment is established, whlch
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Management Fee

Revenue from the management services comprises fixed and variable income. An entity
recognizes revenue relating to the fixed income over time by measuring the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. In respect of variable income, revenue is
recognized is on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Government grant

Government grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to an
entify in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating
activities of the entity. They exclude those forms of government assistance which' cannot

" reasonably have a value placed upon them and transactions with government which cannot be
distinguished from the normal trading transactions of the entity.  Government grants are
recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the
conditions attached to it and that the grants will be received.

Granis are presented as part of income in the statement of profit and loss; alternatively they
are deducted in reporting the related expense.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited _
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(e) Taxes .

Taxes comprises current tax and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and. tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the
Company operates and generates taxable income. :

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or:directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate. :

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet' approach method on temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and the1r carrymg amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

»  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability' in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and
associates, 'when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits (including MAT credit) and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
¢  When the déferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary dlfference arises from the.
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or -
loss
¢ In respect of deductible temporal“y dlfferences associated W1th investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recogmsed only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be




‘Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will dﬂOW the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is tealised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. -

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but nof satisfying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts
and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they tesult from new information obtained
about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date.

If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OCY/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All
other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Value added taxes/goods and service tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring
expenses '

Expenses and assets are recogmsed net of the amount of value added taxes/goods and service
tax paid, except:

e When the tax incurred on a purcha&.e of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable '

. ® When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

() Property, plant and equipment(including cap.ital work in progress)

Property plant and equipment (PPE) is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for thelr
intended use. Freehold land is not depreciated. Capital work in progréss is stated at cost.
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When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decornmissioning of an asset after its usc is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per schedule 11 of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of PPE as follows:

Property plant and equipment Useful life considered

: (SLM)
Building 60 Years
Plant & Machinery ' 15 Years
Electrical installations and fittings 10 Years
Office Equipments ‘ 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtires ‘ 8 Years
Commercial Vehicles ' 6 Years
Private Vehicles 8 Years
Computers 3 Years
Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings 3 Years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation. of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at cach financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

.(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost Jess any
accunmulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditire is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
straight line basis over its useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually at year end either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable, If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis. '

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset arc measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are ‘3‘\' EL
aized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized. '

Py
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(h) Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount
capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available
out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such
current investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds
used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated
. using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the Company
during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is
interrupted. '

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised
cost of a financial 11ab111ty after considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument.

(D Leases

The Company assesses that the contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether ‘a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether:

(1) The contract mvolves the use of an 1dent1ﬁed asset,

(2) The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset, and

(3) The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Company as a lessee

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset
for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured
at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial
direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the
commencement date over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
Right-of-use assets are testéd for impairment whenever there is any indication that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. ) S"’E’E F
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The Company measures the lease Hability at the present value of the lease payments over the
lease term. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company
uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the
Company adopts the incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases as a whole.
The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, exercise price of a
purchase option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. The lease liability is
subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lease payments,

- The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-usc asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company
recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value. The lgase payments associated with these low value leases
are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating
leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

) Inventories )
Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

k) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valucless costs of
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from -
other assets or Company of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly iraded companies or other available fair
value indicators. '
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The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods; a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used.

Impairment losses including 1mpa1rme11t on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. :

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no Jonger exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

) Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the

_ amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the rlsks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when- appropriate the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Provisions arc reviewed, at the end of each reportihg period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. :
Kf/:; H] “1 :
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Contingent Assets/ Liabilities -

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes to accounts when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made.

(m) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre—payment
will fead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme.Gratuity liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is
expensed off at the time of payment of premium.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
o The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset.The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs past-service costs, gains and Josses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payablc to the respective trusts
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Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employeé benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

The Company treats leave expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional
legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months the same is
' presented as non-current liability.

{n) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one ent'ity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are measured at transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assefs
that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. :

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following

categories:

¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost

 Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through proﬁt or loss
(FVTPL)

¢ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

» Equity instruments in subsidiaries carried at cost

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: ™.

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collectlng
contractual cash flows, and
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- b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
- payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The difference between the transaction
amount and amortized cost in case of interest free loan to subsidiaries based on the expected
repayment period is considered as ‘deemed investment on account of interest free loan to
subsidiaries’ (Refer Note 11(iv)). After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. If there is any change in estimate for payment of loan
(provided that there was no error in original estimate) , difference in carrying amount and
repayment has been adjusted as return on capital by the parent, based on condition/ situation
prevailing on that date, The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Debt instrument at FVIPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments.

. In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L. '

Equity investments

All equity investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries) in scope of Ind AS 109
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments in subsidiaries are carried at cost in separate
financial statements less impairments if any, Equity instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance
sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

o The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Impaivment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected. credit loss (ECL) model for - x

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure: i
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a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance '

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

The Company follows -‘simpliﬁed approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
Trade receivables: . '

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months afier the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR, When estimating the cash flows, an entlty is
required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instroment. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument '

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the perlod is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various ﬁ11an01a1
instruments is described below: !

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

e  Debt instruiments measured at FVTOCLE There are no instruments measured at -
FVTOCIL

Financial labilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial Habilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through pmﬁt or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derlvatwes des1gnated as hedging

instruments in an effective hedge as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised i11itia11y at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts, .
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Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss ‘

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
mstruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and
loss.

Financial liabilities at amoriised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process. -

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral pari of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. '

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 15.
Financial guarantee

Financial guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of group companies are designated as
‘Insurance Contracts’. The Company assess at the end of each reporting period whether its
recognised insurance liabilities (if any) are adequate, using current estimates of future cash
flows under its insurance contracts. If that assessment shows that the carrying amount of

its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of the estlmated future cash flows, the entire
deficiency is recognised in profit or loss.

If a financial guarantee is an integral element of debts held by the entity, it is not accounted 7 T E L\@

for separately. - , Q:e\") o
. : ‘ [ 4
Derecognition f’? ;NEW Hi :
e : . e '7:;\“ Y,
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or \ *

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
mounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is teported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. -

(0) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

() Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures
EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from core business operations. In its measurement, the Company
does not include finance costs, finance income, depreciation and amortization, exceptional items, if any -
and tax expense.

Q@ . Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

(r) Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity sharcholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted GPS is caloulated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity sharcholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity
shares into Equity shares. '

(s) Common Contrel business cembinations

The Company accounts for business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control
using the pooling of interest method. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at
their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves are preserved and appear in the financial statements of
the transferee in the same form in which they appeared in the financial statements of the transferor, The
difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration
in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to Capital
Reserve Account and is presented separately as Capital Reserve Account.

In terms of the scheme the amalgamation has been accounted for in accordance with the pooling of
Interest Method. As per said scheme, the financial information in the financial statements in respect of
prior period has been restated w.e.f the appointed date as if business combination occurred from the
beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the a;cﬁmEda.ge* of the
ombination. ‘ Q\\)T £
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Nofes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

4, Intangible assets under development

Particulars ’ Amount
{Rs in lakhs)
Balance as at April 01, 2021 -
Additions during the year 227.91
Balance as at March 31, 2022 : 227,91
Additions during the year 49.62
Balance as at March 31, 2023 277.83

Note: Intangible assets under development consists of cost incurred on development of enabling assets- 330KA substation which has been subsequently
capitalised as on April 18, 2023 .

Agpeing schedule
As at March 31, 2023
Ry in Jakhs
Amount In Intanglble under development for a perlod of
Intangible assets under development Less than 1 year 12 ysars 23 years Mo:‘ee;l::p 3 Total
Projects in progress 49,62 227.91 - - 277.53
Total 49.62 22791 - - 277.53
Ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs
~_Amount in intanglble under development far a perlod of
Intangible assets under development Less than 1 year 12 yoars 2-3 years Mo;t: :::n 3 Total
| Projects in progress 227,91 - - - 227.91
Total 227,91 - - - 227.91




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

5, Other intangible Asscis ; Rs in lakhs
Particulars Sofiware Goodwill Total
Gross Carrying Amount (I}

As at April 1, 2021 ' 342,50 0.08 342.58
Additions - 5.67 - 5.67
As at March 31, 2022 - 348.17 0.08 348,25
Additions 2,10 - 2,10
As at March 31, 2023 350,27 0.08 350.35
Accumulated Depreciation (IT) . )
As at April 1, 2021 173.25 0.05 173.30
Amertisation/impainnent 72.23 0.01 72.24
As at March 31, 2022 24548 0.06 245.54
Amortisation/impairment 42,62 . 0.02 42,64
As at March 31, 2023 . 288,10 0.08 288,18
111, Net Carrying ampunt{J-F}
As at March 31, 2023 . 62,17 - 62,17
Ag at March 31, 2022 102.69 0.02 102.71
Notes .
a) The Intangible assets are valued at cost. The Company has not revalued these assets during the year,
6, Right-of-use asset* ' Ry, In lakhs
Particulars Amount

Gross Carrying Amount (I}

As at April 1, 2021 19,810.19
Diaposal 5,395.04
As at March 31, 2022 14,415.15
Additions -
As at March 31, 2023 . 14,415.15
Accumulated Depreciation (1) ]

As at April 1, 2021 2,796.69
Amertisation 836.30
Disposal : 598.14
As at March 31, 2022 . 3,037.85
Amortisation 643,93
As at Mareh 31, 2023 3,681.79
111, Net Carrying amount(I-IT)

As at March 31, 2023 10,733.36
As at March 31, 2022 11,377.30

*refer note 33

Notes: -

a} The leuse agreement for leasehold properties is registerd in the name of the Company.

b) Right-of-use assets are valued at cost, The Company has not revalued these assets during the year,

(This space has been intentionally left biank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone flnancizal statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

7. Financial assets

As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs R in jakhs

{1) Investments
{A) Investment in'Companies with hotel properties
Investments at cost
Unquoted equity shares of subsidiary companies at eost ]
3,52,677 (Provious Year: 3,52 67",') equity shares of Celsia Hotels Private Limited of Rs, 1 6,973.93 6,973.93
each fully paid,
3,82,80,000 (Previous Year: 3,82,80,000) cquity shares of Ingvon Hotels & Resorts Limited 3,843.54 3,843.54
of Rs. 10 cach fully paid.
82,10,000 (Previous Year; 82,10,000) equity shares of Hyacinih Hotels Private Limited of 13,245.53 13,245.53 -
Re. | each fully paid.*
17,68,94,900 {Previous Year: 17,68,94,900) cquity shares of Iara Hotels Private Limited of . 34,923,10 34,923.10
Rs. | each fully paid. .
5,45,51,616 (Provioug Year: 5,43,51,616) equity shares of Berggruen Hotels Private 49,511.32 49,511,32
Limited of Rs. 10 each fully paid.*
1,31,110 (Previous Year: 1,31,110) eqmty shares of Bandhav Resorts Private Lm'nled of 2,603.27 2,603.27
Rs., 100 each fillly paid. -
Deened Envestment (equity portion) on account of interest free loan to subsidiarles L
Betgpruen Hotols Privaie Limited 839.89 839.89
Celsia Hotels Private Limited : 747 747
Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited 47.42 4742
Hyzcinth Hotels Private Tiniited 52.90 52.90
Jora Hotels Private Limited . 63.47 63.47
Bandhav Resorts Private Limited 177 L7

A) i 11211361 1.12/113.61

(B) Other investments

Investracnts at cost

Unquoted equity shares of subsidiary companies at cost )
2,50,000 (Previous Yesr: 2,50,000) equity shares of Ophrys Hotels Private Limited of Rs. 2.50 2.50
each fully paid.

Investment in Limited Liabiliy Partnership (at cost)
Investment in Mezereon Hotels LLP 1.00 - 1.00

Unguoted equity shares of companies other than subsidiary and associate companies at
fair value through profit and loss

4,109 (Previous Year: 4,109) equity shares ol SEP Energy Private Limited of Rs. 10 each 0.41 0.41
fully paid.
® 3.91 391
(A+B) 1,12,117.82  1,12117,52
Current - -
Non-Current . N 1,12,117.52 1,12,117.52

1,12,117.52 1,12,117.52

*The above investment in subsidiariey are pledged us security against borrewings.

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(i) Loans
Unsecured, congidered pood .
> Lpans to subsidiaries at amortized cost {refer noto 131(iv) and note 33) : 2,319.39 . 2,760.11
2,319.3% 2,760.11
As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(jii) Other non-current flaancial assets -
Unsecured, considered good .
Security Deposits ’ 950.17 . 89803
Interest accrued on deposits with banks and others® ’ . 69.56 - - 29590
Fixed Depesits under lign* 139.36 154,36
‘ ’ 1,159.09 1,348.29
Less Provision for doubtful assels : (462.26) {462.26)
: 696,83 886.03

* Fixed deposits under Tien and infercst accrued on dcposm, includes deposits lien marked with banks against guaraniees issued in favour of various
Government dcparlmenls




Fleur Hotels Private Limited :
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

" 8. Non-current tax assets (net)

As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs _Rs in lakhs
 Advance Income Tax (net of provision for taxation) 703.14 571.05
Total 703.14 571.03
9. Other non-current assets
As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Unsecured considered good
Capital Advances - 79.90
Balance with statutory/ government authorities 10.73 34.53
Prepaid expenses. 1.96 5.17
Total 119.60

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

12,69




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

10. Inventories :
(valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)

As At As At
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Food and beverages {excluding liquor and wine) 62.29 52.10
Liquor and wine 78.00 64.08
Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others (valued at cost) 284.31 .207.82

Total 424.60 324.00

(This 3pace has been intentionally left blank)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

11, Financinl assets

As af Az al
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs —_Rs in lakhs

(f) Trade recelvables#
Trade receivables . :
Unseeured, considered good . 1,874.64 852.10
Trade Receivables which have signilicanl increase in eredit risk 150.58 156.58
Less: Provision for expeeted oredit loss ) (150.58) (150.58)
Total 1,874.64 852,10
Trade receivables ) 1,874.64 852,10

_!55_74.64 852,10

No 1rade or other receivable are due from directors or other ofifcers of the company either severally ar joinlly with any other persos. Nor any trade or other receivable are
due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a parlner, a director or & menber. Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are gencrally en
terms of 30 1o 50 days from the date of invoice,

{This space has been iitentionaily left blank)




Fleur Hotefs Private Limited .
Notes to standalone financial statesnents for the year ended March 31, 2023

. ' Asat Asat
: - March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I35 in lakhs Rs in iakls

{it) Cash and cash equlvalents

Bulance with banks

On curren! accounts . 246.34 1,379.82
Deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less : - 330,00
Cash on hand ' 20.36° 18.51
266.70 1,728.33
Reconciliation of Moevements of Habilites to cash flows arising from financing activites
As at Asal
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Particulars ] .
Balance as at beginning of the year-Borrowings and lease liahiites 1,10,930.42 1,06,714.45
Movement duc to paymentg (recelved/made {4,246.97) (307.75)
Movement due lo non cash transections in lease liabilites and borrewings
~Accrual of finance cost 9,602.33 . 8,962.23
-Adjustmeni of pretermination of leases - - 4,555.31
-Amoriization of processing fee 80,58 116,80
Balance as at end of the year- Borrowings and lease liabilites 1,16,366.36 1,10,930.42
As at Asal
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in 1akhs Rs in lakhs
(iii) Other bank balances
Deposits with original maturily of more than 3 months and less than 12 months
330.00 -
330,00 -
As at . Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(iv) Loans*#
Unsecured, considered good . .
Loans and advance to related parlies : 14,476.85 1,455.17
*read with note 33 . 14,476.85 . 1,455.17
# Disclosure of loans or advances given by the Company in the natyure of loans granted to related parties, . . Rs in lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Amount of loan % of total Loans  Amount of loan or

% of total Loans ai
or advance in the and Advances in advunce in the Yo ! s nd

Advances in the

. nature of loan the nature of nature of loan fure of loans
Typc of Borrower outstanding laans outstanding natu ’
Loan to Related partics (Subsidiaries}
~Non current(refer note (7(ii}) . : 2,319.39 2,760.11
~Current 14.476.85 R 1455.17
Total 16,796.24 100% 4,21528 100%
{¥) Other cn.rrent finaneial assets Asat Asgal
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Inlerest accrued on deposils with banks and olhers 2.7 1534
. - 2777 13,34
12, Other current assets
As At As Al
March 31, 2023. Maich 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs R in lakhs
Advances recoverable B - 26750 277.24
Balance with stalulory’ goverament smthorities T 1,002.64 502,44
Government incentive receivable 86.61 : -
Prepaid expenses - . ' 343.51 28266

Total ' ® 1,700,26 1,152,34




' Flenr Hotels Private Limlted . _
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

13a}. Equity Share capifal

Authorised Equity Share Capital ’ Equity shares
(Equity shares of Rs 10 each)

Nuo. of shares Rs In lakhs
As at April 1, 2021 13,58,50,000 13,585,00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 . 13,58,50,000 13,585.00
Increase/(degrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 13,58,50,000 13,585.00
Anthorised Preference Share Capital Preference Shares Preference Shares

{I!ace Value of Rs. 104 each) (Face Value of Rs, 10 each)

No. of shares Rs in lakhy No, of shares Rs in [alchs
As at April 1, 2021 10,00,000 1,000.00 1,14,00,000 1,140.00
Ingrease/(decrease) during the year . . B - - - -
As at March 31,2022 10,00,000 1,060,00 1,14,00,000 1,140,00
Increase/(decrease} during the year - - - -

" As at March 31, 2023 ) 10,60,600 1,000.00 1,14,00,000 1,140.00

Terms/rights attached fo equity shares
The Company has only one class ufequi%y sharas having par value of Rs. 10 per shars. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the

LCompany, the haiders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion
1o the mumber of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Issued equity eapital*

Equity shaves of Rs, 10 ench jssued, subscribed and fully paid No. of shares . Rs in lakhs
Ag at April 1, 2021 8,28,97,692 8,289.77
Increase/(decrease) during the year* 95,57.461 955.75
As at March 31, 2022 9,24,55,153 9,245,52
Increase during the yeat - -
As at March 31, 2023 . L SH55,153 9,245.82

*During the previnlis year, Company had issued 95,57,461 shares on non oash considerativn o the shareholders of Begonia Hotels Private Limited and Nightingale Hotels Privats
Litnited pursuant to merger.

(&) Shares held by Holding company

Asat : As At

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No. of shares Rs in lakhs M. of shares Rs in Jakhs
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid .
Lemen Trec Hotels Limlted 4,94,94,240 4,949.42 4,94,94,240 v 494942
() Detnils of sharcholders ho]ﬂing morc than 3% shares in the Company
Asad As At ’

. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Name of the shareholder No. of shares % held Ne. of shaves % held
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 4,94,94 240 53,53% 4,94,54,240 53.53%
APG Sirategic Real Estate Pool NV ’ 3,79,91,385 41.09% 3,79,91,385 41.09%

Dundelion Hotels Private Limited ' 49,69,528 538% . 49,69,528 5.38% -

(€) Aggregate number of bonus share issued, share issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought hack during the perlod of five years immediately preceding the
reporting date :

March 31, 2023 Mareh 31,2022
1 . Na. of shares No. of shares

(i) Bquity shares allotted as fully paid, pursuant to amalgamationg .2,18,22,900 2,18,22,900

{This spice bay beer intentionally lef? blank)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

13(1), Instruments entirely equity in riature

Compulsority Convértible Preference Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid* Rs in lakhs
As at April 1, 2021 537.63
Increase/{decrease) during the year -
As at March 31, 2022 } 537.63
Increase/(decrease), during the year -
As at Mareh 31, 2023 537.63
(a) Shares held by Holding company
Asat As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No. of shares Rs in lakhs No. of shares Rs in lakhs
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Lemen Tree Hotels Limited 22,00,000 220,00 - -
(b} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at As At .
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Name of the shareholder No, of shares % held No. of shares % held
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 22,00,000 40.92% . -
APG Strategic Real Hstate Pool NLV 31,76,340 59.08% 53,76,340 100.00%

*On June 22, 2020, Fleur Hotels Private Limited had made allotment of 53,76,340 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10 each at a premiwm of Rs. 315.50 per
share to APG Strategic Real Hstate Pool N.V (first tranche) which wete to be converted into equity shares on or before December 21, 2022, During the year the Holding Company
(Lemon Tree Hotels Limited) has purchased 22,00,000 CCPS from AP Strategic Rezl Bstate Pool N, V. ‘
The Company has extended the conversion period of CCPS to June 30, 2023 as approved in the Extraordinary General Meeting (BGM) held oh December 21, 2022,

14. Other equity
Securities Premium

As at April 1, 2021
Increase/(decrease) during the yoar
As at March 31, 2022

. Increase/(decrease) during the year
Ag at March 31, 2023

Preference Share Capital (equity compoenent of redemable, non converiable preference shares)

As at April 1, 2021
Increase/(decrease) during the year
As at March 31, 2022
Ingrease/(decrease) during the yesr
As at March 31, 2023

Surplusr‘(dcﬁcit)_ in the Stafement of Profit and Loss

As at April 1, 2021
Loss for the year

As at March 31, 2022
Profit for the year

As af March 31, 2023

Rs in lakhs

1,65,530.10

1,65,539.11

1,65,539,11

Rs in lakhs

83.58

83,58

83.58

1 in.lakhs

~(10,86139)
(8,194,70)
(18,256.09)

3,575.05

14,681.04




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes te standalone financlal statements for the year ended Morch 31, 2023

Other eomprehensive Income

As at April 1, 2021
Increase during tho year
As at March 31,2022
Increase during the year
Asat March 31,2023

Capital Reserve Account

As at April 1, 2021
Incresse/(decrease) durlig the year
As at March 31, 2022
Increase/{decrease} during the year
As nt Mareh 31,2023

Other component of Equity

As at Aprill, 2021

Increase/(decrease) during the year (ref'er note 40)

As at March 31, 2022
Increase/(decrease) during the year
Ags at March 31, 2023

Other reserves
Securities Premium

Preference Share Capital (equity component of redemable, non convertable preference shares)
Surpivs/(deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Other comprebensive income
Capital Rgserve Account
Total

Becurities premium: Securitles premium comprises premium received on issue of shares,

Rz in lakhs

1.90)

11.00
310
1.98
5,08

Rsin lakhs

(710.65)

(710.65)

(710.65)

Rs in lakhs

95575
(955,75}
Asat As at
Margh 31, 2023 Merch 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rsin lakhs

1,65538.11 . 1,65,535.11
$3.58 83.58
{14,581.04) (18,256.09)
5.08 310
(710.65) (710.65)
1,50,236.08 1,46,659.04

Preference Share Capital (equity component of redemable, nen converinble preference shares): represents compenent of equity of 5% reedemable non

cummulative Preference share Captial (transforied on merger of Meringue Hotels Private Limited).

Surplus In the Statement of Profit and Loss: Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss represents balances of profit and loss at each period/year end.

Other comprehensive income; Othor comprehensive income represents accumulated balances of Remeasirement (losses)/gaing on defined benefit plans,

Capital Reserve Account: Capitdl reserve account is recorded as difference between share capital issued and the amount of share capital of the transferor.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

15. Financlai Liabilities

As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lalhs Rs in lakhs -

(i) Borrowings
Non-current borrowings ¢
Term Loans
Loans frem Banks (secured)
Yes Bank Limited (Refer note 4, 5,6 and 7 below) 34,098.11 34,921.70
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note 1 and 3 below) 7.430.04 8,032,74
Indusind Bank Limited { Refer Note 8 and 9 below) 6,791.57 4,949.93
Auxis Bank Limited{ Refer Noto 10, 11 and 12 below) 23,576.95 23,909.97
HDFC Bank Limited (Refer 2, 15, 16, 17 and 18 below) 13,619.96 10,769.96
Vehicle loans (Refer note [9 below) 33.90 81,52
Loans from financial institutions .
Aditya Birla Finance Limited ( Refer Note 13 and 14 bslow) 11,600.50 11,588.17
Total non-current borrowings 97,156.03 64,253.99
Current maturity of loans from Banks {(secured)
Yes Bank Limited (Refer note 4, 5,6 and 7 balow) 870.09 -
Indusind Bank Limited { Refer Note 8 and 5 below) 150.00 112,50
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note 1 and 3 below) 607.58 -
HDFC Bank Limited (Refer 2, 15, 16, 17 and 18 below) 650.00 -
Vehicle loans (Refer note 19 below) 49,07 49,80
Axis Bank Limited{ Refer Note 10, 11 and 12 below) 330,96 242.17
Current maturity of loans 2,658.60 404.47
Less: Amount clubbed under “Short term borrowings”(refer note 19(i)) (2,658.60)

Net emrrent borrowings

{404.47)
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Tleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

16.Lease liabilities

As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
. Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Balance af beginning of the year 14,239.33 18,938.67
Less: Deletion during the year 4,555.31
Interest accrued during the year (refer note 26) ' 1,375.12 1,803.16
Lesgs: Payment of lease liabilities 127110 1,847.19
Balance at end of the year 14,343.35 14,239.33
Current 87.75 9343
Non-Current 14,255,60 14,145.90
17, Provisions
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakis
Provision for gratuity (refer note 31) : 36.92 4343
Current ) 713 - BOI
Non-current ’ 2979 36,52
As af As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
_ Provision for leave benefits 49.40 4942
Current ' : A 49.40 49.42
Not-current - -
- Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs In lakhs
Provision for stamp duty {refer note 46) 86.36 1,525.03
Current . o 86,36 1,525.03
" Non-current i - -
Total current 142.90 1,583.36
Total non-current 29,79 36.52

(This space has been intentionally lejt blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

18, Deferred tax liabilities (net)

As at Ag.at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Ry in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 8,435.32 7,897.75
Revaluation of land ‘ 405,04 393.99
Deferred tax liabilities ' B,840.36 8,201.74
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and .29.92 40.00
loss in the current/ earlier period but allowable for tax purposes
on payment basis
Right to use asset/lease liability 1,210.22 1,146.99
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 37.99 4198
MAT credit entitlement ' : 0.00 948.97
Effect of unabsorbed depreciation and business losses carried ' 6,577.61 5,023.73
forward s _
Inferest on loan u/s 43B 920.53 1,019.26
Gratuity ‘ 9,29 12.64
Nor moving inventory ' 0.87 0.96
Leave compensation . o 12.43 13.75
Security deposits-impact on discounting ‘ ‘ 41.50 43.4}6
Deferred tax assets (refer note 30(e)) : 8,840.36 8,291.74

Deferred tax Assets/Liabilities (net) . S

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2023

and March 31, 2022;

' For the year ended  For the year ended

Marech 31, 2623 -March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Profit/(loss) before tax 3,577.03. {8,183.70)
Tax rate - ' 25.17% 27.82%
Tax at statutory income tax rate , 900.27 (2,276.71)
Effect of non-deductible expenses 0.20 -
Unrecognized tax assets {recognised and utilized) (net) ' (900.10) 2,276.71

Net tax expense as statement of profit and loss -




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

19, Financial liabilitfes

Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs - Rs in lakhs

(i) Short term borrowings :
Loan from related party (unsecured, repayable on demand) 357.80 417.70
Cash credit from banks (Secured) * 1,850.58 1,614.93
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 15) 2,658.60 404.47
Total 4,866.98 2,437.10

*The Cash eredit facility from Yes Bank is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 9.48% p.a.(March 31, 2022: 8.15% to 9.15%
p.a)and is secured by way of:

a)Exclusive charge on all movable assets and current assets of Lemon Tree Hotel Kolkata and Lemon Tree Premier Pune and

b) First charge on all present & future immovable fixed assets(B0% portion of undmdcd part of land) of the Lemon Tree Premier Andheri
kutla Road, Mumbai

c)First charge on all present & future movable ﬁxed asgets and current assets of the Lemon Tree Premier Andheri kurla Road, Mumbai

d) Corporate Guarantee of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited (Holding Company}

Basis on several terms and conditions as specified in sanction letters, the company submits quarterly returns/statements comprising of lease
deposit schedules , cash flow mismatch statements and unaudited quarterly statements with banks/ financial institution and these
returns/statements are matetially in agreement with the books of accounts,

(ili) Trade Payables*# . As at ' Asat
: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
-total oufstanding dues of micro enterprises and sinall enterprises : 563.58 266.97
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 4,392.62 3,560.88
*read with note 33
Total ‘ . 4,956.20 3,827.85
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Trade payables 2,404.83 2,059.98
Trade payables to related parties (Holding company) 2,551.37 1,767.87
: i : 4,956.2( 3,827.85

\gw:igi@
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited )
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(iv) Other financial liabilities Ap at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Security Deposits 46.44 46.44
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 164.76 132,75
Book overdraft 12,72 43.82
Total 223,92 223.01
20. Other current liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Advance from custorers . ] 400,32 284,00
Statutory dues (Provident fund, GST, TDS and other statory dues) 280.27 265,60
Total 680.59 545.60

(This space has been intentionally lefl blank)




Flour Hotels Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

11. Revenne From operafions

For the year ended  For the yeer ended
) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs. in lakhs Rs, in lakhs
Sale of products and services
- Room rental 29,393.83 14,219.11
- Food and beverage (excluding liquor and wine) 5,019.53 2,522.89
- Liguor and wine 598,18 244.20
- Banquet rentals 257.85 11598
- Telephone and telex .21 0.37
- Other Services {including service charge income) _ 1,15512 1,154.54
Total 37,424.72 18,257.09
11, Other [ncome
For the year ended  For the yeer ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs, in lakhs Rs, in lakhs
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment 6.26 -
Rent received 11.66 11.58
Provision no longer required written back 19.84 79.15
Waiver of rent* - 393,77
Gain on Termination of Lease - 323.67
Government ingentive acheme-RIPS 2014 (refer note 41) ' ’ B6.61 -
‘Miscellaneous income . 1.90 53.53
Total 126.27 ) 861.70

* During the previous year, consequential to COVID 19 pandemic, the Group has requested and received rent waiver/concessions from certain
landlords and accordingly recognized an amount of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2022: 393,77 lakhs), in Statement of Profit and Loss as “Other Income™, by
applying practical expedient given in Para 46A and Para 46B of Ind AS 116 (as amended),

23, Cost of food & heverages consumed

Tor the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs. in lakhs Rs, in lakhs

{a) Consumption of food & beverages excluding liquor & wine : !
Inventory at the beginning of the year 52.10 52.04
Add: Purchases 2,104.68 1,231.83
- . 2,156.78 1,283.87
Less: Inventory at the end of the year . : 62.29 52,10
Cost of food and beverage ¢onsumed : ’ 2,094.49 1,231.77

{b) Consumption of liquor & wine

Inventory at the beginning of the year . . 64.08° ) 66.69
Add: Purchases ) 180.85 64.91
. . 24493 - ’ 131.60
Less: Inventory at the end of the year ) ) 78.00 64.08
Cost of liquor and wine consumed : . 166.93 67.53
Taotal (a+h) ] . 2,261.42 1,29931

24, Employee benefits expense

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs, in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Salaries, wages and bonus ’ 4,242,98 2,692,70
Contribution to provident fund and other funds T 267.28 184.07
Gratuity expense (refer note 31) 11.70 11,90
Staff welfare expenses ) 468.15 216.66
Total . 4,990.11 3,105.33

(This space has been Iptentionaily lefi blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

25(n). Power and fuel

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs, in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Power and fuel 2,557.89 1,627.05
Total 2,557.89 1,627.05

15(b). Stamp duty expense

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
s, in Jakhs Rs. in fakhs
Stamp duty expense : 478.42 1,525.03
Total . 478,42 1,525.03

25(c). Other expenses

For the year ended  For the yvear ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Rs, in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Consumption of stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others . 426,30 259,19
Linen & uniform washing and laundry expenses 423.08 281.53
Guest transportation o 203,31 42.59
Spa expenses 143.95 47.69
Subseription charges 67.04 5342
Repair and maintenance -

- Buildings 286.43 109.67
- Plantand machinery ‘ 374,28 295.66
- Others : ' _ _ 296.58 223,02
Rent (refer note 32) - 84.79 95,71
Rates and taxes 849.43 840,89
Insurance . ' - 127.45 103,88
Communication costs 101.56 83.53
Printing and stationery 91.80 34.34
Traveling and conveyance - 33.93 10.61
Vehicle renning and maintenance 49.31 33,05
Advertisement and business promotion ’ 1,165.84 577.67
Management fee pald 2,614.99 1,016.00
Commission -other than sole selling agent 1,550,72 848.44
“Security and cleaning expenses 291,68 172,96
Memnibership and subscriptions 6,71 ) 5.04
Legal and professional fees 201.84 187.13
Sundry Balances written off L 1.35

Donation 0,78 -
Paymients to anditor* 50.99 35.00
Miscellaneons expenses ' 176.91 81.43
Taotal ) 9,619.50 5,465.80

*Payments to anditor (excluding Goods and serviee tax}
For statutory audit 33.00 26.00 -

For tax audit : 1.00 1.00
For attestation service 15.00 ' 8,00

Out of pocket expense 1,99 -
‘ : 50,99 35.00

(This space has been intentionaily left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limfted

Notes to standalone financial statements for the yéar ended March 31, 2023

16. Finance costs.

Tor the year ended -~ For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Interest
- ontenm loans from banks 7,233.08 6,151.30
- on loans from othérs 1,066.64 1,138.08
- on vehicle loans %19 14.48
- on other credit facilities from banks 30.28 -
- o1 lease liability ( refer note 16) 1,375.12 1,803.16
Bank charges (including commission on credit card collection) 257,26 111.52
Taotal 9,972.17 9,218.54
27. Finance income
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Rs, in lakhs s, in lakhs
Interest Income on :
-Baok Deposits 26.16 96,26
-Others 305,11 32.15
Profit on sale of current investment - 0.01
Total 331.27 128.42
248, Depreciation and amortization expense
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakbs
Depreciation on tangible assets (refer note no, 3) 3,741.19 4,289.31
Depreciation on right-of-use asset ( refer note 6 & 32) 643.96 839,30
Amortization on intangible assets (refer note no. 5) 42.64 72.24
Total 4,427.70 5,200.85

19, Earnings Per Share (Basic EPS And Diluted EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are caloufated by dividing the eaming/(losé} for the year atiributable to equity holdars of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Bquity shares that will be issued upon the conversion of mandatory convertable preference shares
are included in evaluation of basic EP$ ‘
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the earning/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company (after adjusting for inferest on the
convertible preference shares) by the weighied average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
equity shares that would be issued on cenversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The deowing reflects the income and share data used in the ‘basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended  For the year ended

o March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Earning/(loss) attributable to equity holders (for basic and diluted) 3,575.05 (8,194,70)
Weighted average number of equity Shares (for basic and diluted earnings per
sharz)* . 9,78,31,493 9,78,31,493
Basic and Diluted edrnings per share ’ . 3.65 (8.38)

* The weighted average number of shares takes intp account the weighted average effect of changes in share transactions during the year. There have
been ne other transsctions invelving Equity shares or potential Bquity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial
staterments. '

(This space has been intentionally lefl blank)




30.

Fleur Hotels Private lelted :
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities and other commitments. Uncertainty about these judgements, estimates and assumptions could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of asscts or liabilities affected in future
periods. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market -
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the

- assumptions when they occur. The estimates anid underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and the

revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised.

Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions
a. Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Each hotel property is an identifiable asset that generates cash inflows and is independent of the cash inflows of the
other hotel properties, hence identified as cash generating units. The Company assesses the carrying amount of
hotel properties (CGU) to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. Where the carrying amount of CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered itnpaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss (if any) is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow approach including various
significant estimates and assumptions such as forecast of future revenue, operating margins, growth rate and
selection of the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as follows::

 Particulars As at March 2023 ___As at March 31, 2022
Discount Rate (pre tax rate of WACC) _ o 12.5% 11.70% - 13%
Long Term Growth Rate : 5.50% 5.00%

As at March 31, 2023, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount.
b. Impairment of Investment in subsidiaries and associates

The Company assesses the carrying amounts of investment in subsidiaries having hotel properties to determine
whether there is any indication that those investments have suffered an impairment loss. Where the carrying amount
of investments exceed its recoverable amount, the investment is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount, An impairment loss (if any) is recognised in the statement of proﬁt and loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow approach including various
significant assumptions such as such as forecast of future revenue, operating margins, growth rate and selection of
the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as follows: :

Particulars ' As at March 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Discount Rate (pre fax rate of WACC) : 12.5% 11.70% - 13.5%
Long Term Growth Rate 5.50% 5.00%

As at March 31, 2023, the estimated recoverable amount of the investments exceeded its carrying amount.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

¢, Leases

The Co11115any has taken certain land and building on long term lease basis. The lease agreements generally have an
escalation clause and are generally non-cancellable. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to
. exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or
not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company evaluates if an arrangefment qualifies to be a lease as
per the requirements of IND AS 116. Tdentification of a lease requires judgment. The Company uses judgement in
assessing the lease term and the applicable discount rate. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental
borrowing rate. ' :

d. Loss Allowance on trade receivables (Expected credit loss)

An impairment analysis of trade receivables is performed at each reporting period based on the Company’s history
of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates. Basis
this assessment, the allowance for doubtful trade receivables as at March 31, 2023 is considered adequate.

e. Taxes

Considering that nature of the Company’s operations and history of past tax losses, deferred tax assets (including
MAT credit) are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be generated in future against
which jthe deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses can be
utilised. Accordingly, it is considered prudent to recognize the deferred tax assets only to the extent of deferred tax -
liabilities and the Company has not recognised deferred tax assets of Rs 4,076.50 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs
5,262.95 lakhs)

31. Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit.
The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at tetirement age. The fund has
the form of a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees, which consists of an equal number of employer and
employee representatives. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the
definition of the investment strategy.The Trust Fund has taken a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions
are transferred to the insurer. The Company makes provision of such gratuity liability in the books of accounts on
the basis of actuarial valuation as per the Projected unit credit method.

Rs. in lakhs
As at March 31, As at March 31,
| 2023 | 202
Gratuity plan 36.92 45.43
Total 3692 4543




76'9¢ LS. 8¢'E | LT1 #10 - 101 (Te'€T) 0L'TE 9LT ¥o'8 15 4% Anprqer| Jysuag
. . . ) ) } . . . . } . s1osse ueyd
88°7C LS'L (to'n 101 (2o'1) €60 £€6°0 00°ST o onea meg
) _ } ) ) . ) ) ) ) ) . . woTedTqo
08°6S (L6'0) AN ¥ (6T°T1) €9'TI 69°€ 768 €709 yyousq pougeq
. . (asmadxo
suonydmnsse suonpdmnsse
1SAIIJUT 11
[eLuRung aydesSowmap S50] oy
Jokopduors D0 E papnpaur :
£TOT yuounsnipe  w saduerp ul sadueyd . ’ pred Jojgoad  jasmadxo 1509 7707
Aq suor ul papnjoul : spunowe
IE YRIR duarkadxy  woyy Suse oy Juisine . S)gouayg  WIPIPIPUI JSAINUL  IIAIDG T pady
mAuo)  [B10)-qng SuIpnyxa) : )
: segueyd Jua . sISuBYd I spasst weyd ®10)-qng /N
WINSEIWRY  IWRINSBIMWIY :
LILLRINYIEE): |
SYypy Ul sy awodul aasuayasdusd sagyo ur (sasso])sured aﬁuauhmmmwiwum §50] 10 .
Hmc.:m 0} Uuw.ﬂwﬁ—u 3509 JO Ju2urdjels IIUBEY
Sunmady

(€707 ‘1€ U2IBTAl TE Se sjosse mepd Jo onJea Jre] pue ToneSIqo JJouaq pauiap ay; ur safuey))

€707 ‘1€ YIIRTAl PAPUD I8IA ) J0) SIUIMWIIEB)S [BIDUBUIJ JUOC[BPURIS 0] SIION
PAITWIT 91BALIJ S[310H INA[g



06'TT

£pst - ©0ID @z on oD - CrA1) (61°€) £S°T LE'6 sy Amgery peusg
. ) . : ) . . . . ) . gyosse uepd
0051 970 - (520 sTm 88°0 88°0 €91 10 onpea 112 g
. _. . . . . . . . uoedqo
€509 - GzID  GzoD (Zo'T) - - WD) 8Tl WE O LE6 S809 e

- {asmadxo

suopdwmnsse  suondwmnsse :
g 159.13)T JO0
: [elxuRuL srgdergourap S80[ WOdUL
Aopdua D0 Ul papnpyuy .
707 £ ppunsnipe LIRS F i1 ) ul sagueny . pred X0 jgoad fsuwdxs 3502 10T
<] sHol ul papnpaut : sjunourg
I€ Yaae] y : * omrrdsy  woiy Suisoe uroxy uisLre SIGATAY UIPIPNPUT  JSAIMI  3IIAIIG qmudy
: mgiyue) - [ejo-qng safue , g SuIpnpxs) _
: LIRILE] sasuey Ju syosse uerd ®103-gng FETN
USINSEAMIYY]  JUWIIINSEIWNY ¥ .
) o wInay
SYYD] UL Sy 2001 dA1sudgoxdmes 110 Ul (sassof)/Sured JEouIaInseatiay] $80[
_ : 10 jJgod o) paSxed 3503 JO JUSIIEYS SIUEIEY
Suruad)

1TTOT 1€ Y2IBA 18 Se s1asse Teld Jo anjea Ie] pUe TONESI|O HJIUSq PIULSP I} Ut saSuey)

€707 ‘1€ Y218\ PIpud I1ed3£ aY) I0J SIUIWIB)S [BIIUBUI] SUO[BPUE]S 0) SIJON

PIIIWIT 3)BALLIJ S[3}0H NI



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2023 '

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the fotal plon assets are as follows:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Uniquoted investments: ‘
Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC 160% - 100%
Total : ' ' 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown
below:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Discount rate;

Pension plan 7.20% 6.10%
- Foture salary increases: ) '

Pension plan - _ 5.00% 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Years = Years
Pension plan o :

Male ' e . : 60 60
Female ' ‘ 60 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptioh as at March 31, 2023 is as shown below:

India gratuity plan: 7
Rs in lakhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, Mareh 31,
2023 2023 : 2023 2023
Assumpftions Discount rate - Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit
pac (1.81) 1,03 1.96 (1.86)

obligation




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March

31, 2023

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2022 is as shown below:

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, ’ March 31, March 31, March 31,
2022 2022 2022 2022
Assumptions . Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level ' 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase - 1% decrease
Tmpact on defined benefit :
Tpact on delinet: benett (1.94) 2.08 208 (1.98)

obligation

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period. . .

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Rs. in lakhs
. ‘ For the year ended ' For the year ended

Duration (Years) : March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1 14.94 . 1393

2 12.90 11,66 -

3 10.69 10.95

4 8.45 8.91

5 o 7.34 7.04

Above 5 _ - 23.16 o - 23,45

Total expected payments 77.48 75.94

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years
(March 31, 2022: 5 years). .
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32. Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases

Operating lease commitments — Cbmpany as lessee

The-Company has entered into operating leases on hotel buildings, with lease terms befween twenty
three, twenty five, twenty eight and twenty nine years. Refer Note no.6 for carrying value of right to use

asset recognised and Refer Note no.16 for carrying value of lease liability and the movement during the
year. -

The weighted average of 1ncremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 9. 72% (March 31,
2022: 9.72%) '

b, Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

At March 31, 2023, the Company had commitments of Rs.45.90 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: 82.47 Lakhs)
c. Contingent liabilities

(i) Legal elaim contingency
' Rs. in lakhs

Mareh 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

a.  iService Tax* ' ' 102,45 ' 92.38

b. ilncome tax®* 27.25 -

#amount paid under protest— 23.10 lakhs
**amount paid under protest/adjusted against refund — 10.72 lakhs

i

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for
where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial
statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse
effect on its financial statements.

(ii) For financials guarantee given to banks on behalf of aud in respect of term loan facilities availed by
its group companies refer note 32(d).

(iii) Pledge of shares

(a) Pledge of 30% and lien of 21% in favour of Trustee on the basis of Non-disposable undertaking of
the shareholding held in Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited by the Company for term loan facility
availed by Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited. Amount of Loan outstanding as on March 31, 2023 of
Rs. 13,726.45 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs 14,342.45 lakhs).
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(b) Pledge of 30% of sharcholding held in Berggruen Hotels Private Limited by the Company for term
loan availed by Berggruen Hotels Private Limited from Yes Bank Limited. Amouut of Loan
outstanding as on March 31, 2023 is Rs. 6,458.28 lakhs. (March 31, 2022: Rs. 7,351.44 lakhs)

(d) Financial guarantees

“The Company has issued financial guarantees to banks on behalf of and in respect of term loan facilities

availed by its group companies for construction of new hotel project. In accordance with the policy of
the Company (refer note 2.2(n) the Company has designated such guarantees as ‘Insurance Contracts’.
The Company has classified financial guarantees as contingent liabilities. These financial guarantees are
an integral element of debts held by entities, hence has not been accounted for separately. Accordingly,
there are no assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet under these contracts. Refer below for
details of the financial guarantees issued: '

Rs. in lakhs
Loan Guarantees Loan | Guarantees
QOutstanding as on Outstanding as on
as on March | March 31, | as on March | March 31,
31,2023 2023 31,2022 2022
a. |Counter guarantees issued in respect of - 674.11 - | 79206
guarantees issued by Company §
bankers

b. |Guarantee given on behalf of Hyacinth 2,465.79 16,105.00 14,342 .45 16,105.00
Hotels Private Limited '

c¢. |Guarantee given on behalf of Celsia 2,550.78 2,709.00 4,760.77 5,972.00
Hotels Private Limited

d. |Guarantee given on behalf of Inovoa 3,025.27 3,481.00 |° 3,783.19 3,481.00
Hotels & Resorts Limited

e. |Guarantee given on behalf of Berggruen 6,458.28 18,600.00 | 7,351.44 18,600.00

Hotels Private Limited

(e¢) Note on Provident Fund:

Based upon the legal opinion obtained by the management, Company is not required to create provisions
in books of accounts in view of the judgement of the Hon'ble Supreme court in the case of
Vivekananda Vidyamandir vs Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II), West Bengal and’
subsequent dismissal of review petition by Hon’ble Supreme court in the case of review petition No.
001972-001973/2019 in civil appeal 3965-3966 in the matter of Surya Roshni Ltd Vs Employees
Provident Fund and Another.

Considering the equitable cause, the High Courts may give prospective effect to the judgement which can
be done in exercise of inherent powers of High Court under Article 226 of the constitution of India.

In case of Company retrospective effect is remote and at present uniformity is maintained across all
brands/grades.
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33. Related Party Transactions

Names of related parties
Holding Company

Subsidiary Company

Fellow subsidiary companies

Limited Liability Partnership

Key Management Personnel

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by
key management personnel or their relatives

Enterprise in which Holding Company has
Significant Influence

- Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

- Celsia Hotels Private Limited
- Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited
- Tora Hotels Private Limited

_- Ophrys Hotels Private Limited

- Hyaginth Hotels Private Limited
- Bandhav Resorts Private Limited
-Berggruen Hotels Private Limited

- Manakin Resorts Private Limited
-Hamstede Living Private Limited
-Canary Hotels Private Limited

- Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
- Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

- Mezereon Hotels LLP

- Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani (Managing Director)

- Mr Aditya Madhav Keswanl (Director) (w.c.f May 27,
2022)

-Mr Nitin Malhan (Director)

- Mr. Dominic James Doran (Director)

-Mr, Paramartha Saikia{Independent Director)

-Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha (Independent Director)

-Mr. Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya (Independent
Director)

- Mr. Pradeep Mathur (Independent Director)

- Toucan Real Estates Private Limited

-Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited

Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during

the year:;

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

-Mr. Inder Pal Batra
TRy
-Mrs. Sonali Manchanda (/

G WA
2 W’”:’

(x- Y
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The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related
parties for the relevant financial year

Rs in lakhs
Enterprises Enterprise
owned or in which
. . . . Key significantly Holding
Transactions with “Year ended Holding Sub's1d1ar F(?llf)wa Msnagement influenced by key Company
Related Party Company jes . subsidiaries
Personnel management has
personnel or their | significant
‘ relatives influence
Reimbursement
of expenses
paid on behalf
of party
Lemon Tree ' ‘
.. 31-Mar-23 ) - - - - -
Hotels Limited ‘ 7.27 _
31-Mar-22 5.76 - - - - -
Loans (given)
Celsia Hotels
. .. 31-Mar-23 - - " - -
Private Limited ‘ 2.46 . .
31-Mar-22 - 10.00 - < - “
Hyacinth Hotels : : ;
. .. 31-Mar-23 - - : - - -
Private Limited 83.60
31-Mar-22 - 885 | - - - -
lora Hotels '
. .. 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
Private Limited : 13,188.35
31-Mar-22 - 5,187.14 - - - -
Bandhav Resorts ' ‘
. . 31-Mar-23 - - - - - -
Private Limited
31-Mar-22 - 403 - - . ..
Berggruen .
H_otc?is Private 31-Mar-23 -~ | 3s1834 - . . : .
Limited .
31-Mar-22 - 455423 . - - . - -
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- 68.91

31, 2023
Enterprises Enterprise
owned or in which
. . . i ] Key significantly Holding
Transactions with Year ended Holding Sub.SIdlEll‘ F'?H.Dw. Management influenced by key | Company
Related Party Company ies subsidiaries | -
} Personnel management has
personnel or their | significant
relatives influence
Inovoa Hotels & '
: . . 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
Resorts Limited 32.14
31-Mar-22 - 77.83 - - - -
Repayment of
Loan Given
Celsia Hotels
. . 31-Mar-23 - . - - - -
Private Limited 2.46
31-Mar-22 - 50.00 - - - -
Hyacinth Hotels
. _ 31-Mar-23 - - - - R
Private Limited 83.60
31-Mar—22 - 885 - . - -
Tora Hotels ‘
. . 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
Private Limited A 1,371.96
31-Mar-22 - 7,002.14 - - - -
Bandhay Resorts | ) v, 53 ; i ) ] ]
Private Limited 21.34
31-Mar-22 - 0.03 - - . -
Berggruen ) 1 ,
H_otel,ls Private 31-Mar-23 - 3,244.41 - - . .
Limited
31-Mar-22 - 1,254.43 - - - -
Inovoa Hotels & ;
.. 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
Resorts Limited 40.96
S| 31-Mar-22 - . - ] )
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Transactions with
Related Party

Year ended

Holding
Company

Subsidiar
ies

Fellow
subsidiaries

Key
Management
Personnel

Enterprises
owned or
significantly
influenced by key
management
personnel or their
relatives

Enterprise
in which
Holding
Company

has
significant
influence

Loans (taken)

Manakin Resorts
Private Limited

31-Mar-23

5.00

31-Mar-22

58.80

Repayment of
Loan taken

Manakin Resorts
Private Limited

31-Mar-23

64.90

31-Mar-22

10.00

Management
fees and
advertisement
and sales
promotion

Lemon Tree
Hotels Limited

31-Mar-23

3,736.88

31-Mar-22

" 1,563.09

Training
expenses paid
(Gross)

Mind Leaders
Learning India
Private Limited

31-Mar-23

11.30

31-Mar-22

- 73.08

Remuneration
Paid

Mr. Inder Pal
Batra

" 31-Mar-23

55.011

31-Mar-22

38.74

Mrs. Sonali-
Manchanda

31-Mar-23

22.53

31-Mar-22

15.35
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Enterprises Enterprise
owned or in which
i : . . A Key significantly Holding
Transactions with Year ended Holding Sub.su:llal F?ll?w. Management influenced by key Company
Related Party Company ies subsidiaries
Personnel management has
personnel or their | significant
relatives influence
Subscription to
Share Capital
ITora Hotels
- .. 31-Mar-23 - - - - - -
Private Limited :
31-Mar-22 - 6.999.99 - - _ .
Director Sitting
Fees
Mr. Ashish
31-Mar-23 - - - - -
Kumar Guha _ 1.05
31-Mar-22 - - - 115 - -
Mz, Paramartha
. 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
Saikia - 1,20
31-Mar-22 - - - 1.00 - -
Mr. Pradeep - _
Mathur 31-Mar-23 - " ] 1.05 - -
31-Mar-22 - - - 0.75 - -
Mr. Niten
31-Mar-23 - - ‘- - -
Malhan ar 0.70
31-Mar-22 - - - 115 - -
Amount given
to the party
Toucan Real
Estates Private | . 31-Mar-23 - - - - 3430 )
Limited
31-Mar-22 - - - - -

148.52
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‘ Enterprises Enterprise
owned or in which
: . . ) . . . Key significantly Holding
Transactions with Year ended Holding Sub'mdlar F?H?“i. Management influenced by key Company
Related Party . Company ies subsidiaries j
Personnel ~ management has
personnel or their | significant
rélatives influence
Guarantees
Given for loan
| taken by
Celsia Hotels
. .. 31-Mar-23 - - - - B
Private Limited 3,263.00
3i-Mar-22 - - ) - - . .
Tora Hotels
. .. 31-Mar-23 - - - - .
Private lelted ar 2,000.00
31-Mar-22 - - - - - -
Amount
Received on
behalf of the
Company
| Lemon Tree
.. 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
Hotels Limited 33.93
,31-Mar-22 63.38 - i} ) ) .
Canary Hotels 31-Mar-23 - - ' ] ] )
Private Limited 0.25
31-Mar-22 - - 0.28 . - -
Hyacinth Hotels | - ‘
. .. 31-Mar-23 - - “ - -
Private Limited 0.25
31-Mar-22 - 316 - - - -
Inovoa Hotels &
. 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
Resorts Limited Mar 0.23
31-Mar-22 - - - - . -
Bérggmen Hotels
, . 31- - - - - - - .
Private Limited 1-Mar-23 1.23

31-Mar-22




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March
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Enterprises Enterprise
owned or in which
. . . . - Key significantly Holding
Transactions with Year ended Holding Sublsuhar F?ll?w. Management influenced by key Company
Related Party Company ies subsidiaries
‘ ‘ Personnel management has
: personnel or their | significant
relatives influence
Bandhav Resorts
Private Limited 31-Mar-23 i 0.25 i ) . .
31-Mar-22 - - - . . .
Oriole Dr Fresh
Hotels Private 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
. 0.25
Limited )
31-Mar-22 - - - - . _
Sukhsagar
Complexes 31-Mar-23 - - 6.25 - . ;
Private Limited )
31-Mar-22 - - - - ) - .
Manakin Resorts
. . 1-May- - - - - -
Private Limtied 31-Mar-23 ' 0.25 ,
31-Mar-22 - - - - - -
Interest
Paid(Gross)
Manakin Resorts
. .. 31-Mar-23 - - 33.81 - - -
Private Limited
31~Marw'22 - - 40.60 - - -
Amount paid '
on behalf of the
party
Lemon Tree
.. 31-Mar-23 - - - . -
Hotels Limited ar 3.09
31-Mar-22 11.15 - . w - -
Hyacinth Hotels
. .. 31-Mar-23 - . - - - .
Private Limited ar 0.11
31-Mar-22 - 155 - - - -
Inovoa Hotels &
.. 31-Mar-23 - - - - .
Resorts Limited ar 0.13

 3]-Mar-22
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Enterprises Enterprise
owned or in which
N . . N Key significantly Holding
Transactions with Year ended Holding S“b.Sldlm F‘?“(.]w. Management influenced by key Company
Related Party ‘ Company ies subsidiaries
_ Personnel management has
personnel or their | significant
relatives influence
Berggruen
Hotels Private 31-Mar-23 - - . . . .
Limited
31-Mar-22 - 1.34 - - | - -
Oriole Dr. Fresh .
Hotels Private 31-Mar-23 | - - - . . .
Limited '
31-Mar-22 - - 0.51 - - -
Sukhsagar 7
Complexes 31-Mar-23 - - ‘ . gl . -
Private Limited ' ' -
31-Mar.22 - - 0.06 - - K
Payment of
Interest accrued
but not due
Iora Hotels ' '
o . : 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
Private Limited ' - 228.06
31-Mar-22 - - - - - -
Interest
accrued but not
due (Gross)
Tora Hotels :
. . 31-Mar-23 - ' : - : - - -
Private Limited - . .
31-Mar-22 - | - 228.06 - . - - -
Balances
outstanding at’
the vear end-
Loans given
InovoaTlotels & |, 0 s N ) . . .
Resorts Limited 0.10 .
31-Mar-22 oo- .02 - - . - .
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Enterprises Enterprise
‘ owned or in which
. . . - Key significantly Holding
Transactions with Year ended Holding Sub‘suhar F?H?w. Management influenced by key | Company
Reiated Party Company | ies subsidiaries
Personnel management has
personnel or their | significant
relatives influence
Tora Hotels :
. . . '31-Mar-23 - : - - - -
Private Limited : 13,199.49
31-Mar-22 - 1,383.11 - ' “ - -
Bandhav Resorts .
. . 31-Mar-23 - : - - - -
Private Limited A -
31-Mar-22 - 2134 - - - . -
Berggruen 4
Hptt?ls Private 31-Mar-23 - 421373 . 3 ) _
Limited
31-Mar-22 - - 3,639.80 - - - -
Others 31-Mar-23 - - 2.00 - - - -
31-Mar-22 - 2,00 - 1 - - ' -
Balances
outstanding at
the year end-
Loans taken
Manakin Resorts . :
. .. 31-Mar-23 - - . - -
Private Limited 357.80
31-Mar-22 - - 41770 - - | -
Balances
outstanding at
the year end-
Trade Payable
Trade Payable
Lemon Tree e .
.. 31-Mar-23 - - - . - -
Hotels Limited 2,551.37
31-Mar22 ) 67.87 i o - _ - s
e
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5,972,060

31, 2023
Enterprises Enterprise
\ owned or in which
. . . - Key significantly Holding
Transactions with Year ended Holding Sub-suilar F?"Pw. Management influenced by key Company
Related Party : Company ies subsidiaries :
Personnel management has
‘ personnel or their | significant
relatives influence
Mind Leaders
Learning India '
. .. 31-Mar-23 - - - - - 2.
Private Limited ar 5
31-Mar-22 - - - - ) 5.39
Advance
recoverable
Toucan Real .
‘Estate Private 31-Mar-23 | - - - 95.23 -
Limited
31-Mar-22 - - - - -
Capital
Advance
Toucan Real
Estate Private 31-Mar-23 - - - y ) .
Limited
31-Mar-22 - - - - 79.90 -
Security
Deposit
Toucan Real
Estate Private 31-Mar-23 - - - - 192,00 i
Limited
31-Mar-22 - - - - 192.00 -
Guarantees
Given for loan
taken by
Hyacinth Hotels
. .. 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
Private Limited 16,105.00
31-Mar-22 - 16,105.00 - - - -
Celsia Hotels
. .. 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
Private Limited : 2,709.00
31-Mar-22 - - - - -
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Enterprises Enterprise
owned or in which
| . . : . . Key significantly Holding
Transactions with Year ended Holding Sub_sullar Fgll?w. Management influenced by key Company
Related Party Company ies subsidiarics
Personnel management has
personnel or their | significant
relatives influence
Inovoa Hotels & | .
. 31-Mar-23 - . - - - -
Resorts Limited 3,481.00
31-Mar-22 - 3.481.00 - _ - - -
Berggruen : _ _
H_otgls Private 31-Mar-23 - 18,600.00 - . | . .
Limited
31-Mar-22 - 18.600.00 - - - . -
Tora Hotels ' :
. - 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
Private Limited ar 2,000.00 :
' 31-Mar-22 - - - - s -
Guarantee ' '
Taken for I.oan
received
Lemon Tree ' ‘
: .. 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
Hotels Limited 85,302.00 :
31-Mar22 1 g5 300,00 ) ) ) - )
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances with related parties at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and
settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has not recorded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2022: INR Nil).
This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the
related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Commitments with related parties

The Company has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

34. Fair value measurement

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and
provides additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies,
including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recogmsed in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity
mstrument :

a.  Financial Assets (other than equity investment/ deemed investment in subsidiaries
' carried at cost)
Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
| FVTPL Amortised Cost FVIPL | Amortised Cost
Financial Assets )
Trade Receivables - 1,874.64 | - - §52.10
Security Deposits ' '
(non-current) - 487.92 - 898.03
Other bank - — '
balances{including
Fixed deposits under ‘
Lien) - 469.36 - 154.36
Cash and Cash : S
Equivalents , - 266.70 ) 1,728.33
Interest accrued on ' :
deposit with banks
and others - 97.33 - ' 308,66
Loans 16,796.24 4,215.28
Total Financial :
Assets (other than
equity investment/
deemed investment
in subsidiaries :
carried at cost) : 19,992.19 ; ‘ 8,156.76

Note: The financial assets above do not include mvestments in subsidiaries which are measured at
cost in accordance Wlth Ind AS 27.
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b. Financial Liabilities

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost

Financial
Liabilities
Borrowings - 102,023.01 - 96,691.09
Trade Payables _| . 495620 - 3,827.85
Lease Liabilities - 14,343.35 - 14,239.33
QOther Current
Financial ' 223,92 - 223.01
Tiabilities
Total Financial '
Liabilities | 12154648 -| 11498128

¢. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderty
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels
depending on the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as
follows:

i} Levell

Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

ii) Level 2

Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level 1 for the asset or lability.

iii) Level 3
Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to
observable related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants,
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35 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to
support its operations. The Company's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and
cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is
supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the
Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises.of interest rate risk, currency risk and
other price risk. Financial instraments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or futuré cash flows of a financial instrument will -
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes

in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating

interest rates. The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company
expects the variable rate to decline in long term, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its

loans at variable interest rates. -

 Rs.In lakhs
A March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Variable rate borrowings 1,01,576.34 96,559.77
| Fixed rate borrowings : ‘ 446.67 131.32

Interest rate sensifivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before
. tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

- Rs. In lakhs

Particulars ' Increase/decrease in basis points | Effect on profit before tax
March 31, 2023 _
Floating rate borrowing 50 467.33
Floating rate borrowing ' -50 (467.33)
March 31, 2022 )

Floating rate borrowing - 50 447,35
7El{&1;i11g rate borrowing : ‘ -50 (447.35)  moiiee,
LE-)
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Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has no exposure in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss, The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities, including deposits
with banks and other financial instruments.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk managemént. Credit quality of a
customer is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the agsessment both in
terms of number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum. exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 11. The Company dogs not hold collateral as
- security..

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Trade receivables (including prov1s1on for
expected credit loss)

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Provision at beginning 150.58 216.58
Addition during the year - -
Reversal during the year _ ' - 66.00
Utilised during the year - -
Provision at closing 150.58 150.58 .

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury
department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Company's
maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2023 and
March 31, 2022 is the carrying amount as given in Note 1 1.
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Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The
Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the
concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has
access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled
over with existing lenders, As at March 31, 2023, the Company had no sanctloned balance (March 31,
2022: 2,490 lakhs) of undrawn committed borrowmg facilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

Rs. In lakhs
On demand Less than3 - 3 to 12 1 to 5 years > 5 years - Total
- months months -
Year ended
March 31, 2023 _ : S
Borrowings™* 2,208.38 204.10 2,454.50 39,015.51 58,958.76 1,02,841.25
Trade and other ' 4.956.19 _ ) . - 4,956.19
payables
Other Financial ' ‘
. - - - - 223,92
Liabilities 22352 _
7,388.49 204.10 © 2,454.50 39,_015.51 58,958.76 1,08,021.36
Year ended '
March 31, 2022
Borrowings™ 2,032.63 8.30 396.17 26,851.13 68,287.21 97,575.44
Trade and other 3.827.85 i ' i i . 3,827.85
payables 85
Other Financial
Liabilities 223.01 - - - - 223.01

6,083.49 8.30 3%6.17 26,851.13 68,287.21 101,626.30
*represents un—discounteddcashﬂows

The table provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2023
as on undiscounted basis

Particulars As at As at
_ March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Minimum Lease Payments :
Not later than one year 1,276.54 1,265.42
Later than one year but not later than five years 5,887.00 , 5,657.68
Later than five years 26,661.08 28,166.94

Total 33,824.62 35,090.04
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36 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makesadjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Companymayadjust the dividendpayment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings,
trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. In lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowings (Note 15 and Note 19}

~ (Net of Processing Fee) 1,02,023.01 96,691.09
Trade payables (Note 19) : : - 4,956.20 3,827.85

" Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 11) 266.70 1,728.33
Net debt , ‘ 1,06,712.51 98,790.61
Total capital ©1,60,019.23 156,442.20
Capital and net debt 266,731.23 255,232.81
Gearing ratio 40% 39%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things,
aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants a‘ttached to thc interest-bearing loans and borrowings
that define capital structure requirements. :

Breaches'in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no significant breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing
loans and borrowmg in the current period. "

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for ﬁ1anaging capital during the years
ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

37. Amendements/Standards notified but net yet effective

a) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendmients to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 31, 2023, the MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by
issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which are
applicable for annual reporting periods beginning from April 01, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements- This amendment requires companiés to
disclose their material accounting policies information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of gcneral purpose financial
statements. The Company does not expect to have any significant impact in its financial statements
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Ind AS 8§ — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors- This amendment

- will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition
of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates.
Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. The Company does not expect to have any significant impact in
its financial statements due to this amendment.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes- The amendment has narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption so
that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. The Company does not expect to have any significant impact in its
financial statements due to this amendment.

Other amendments- Other amendments include amendments in Ind AS 102, Share-based Payments,
Ind AS 103, Business Combination, Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, Ind AS 115, Revenue from
Contract with Customers, are mainly editorial in nature in order to provide better clarification of
respective Ind AS. The Company does not expect to have any significant impact in its financial
statements due to these amendments : '

b) Note on Social Security:

The Code on Wages, 2019 and Code on social security, 2020 (“the codes™) relating to
employee compensation and post-employment benefits that received Presidential assent
have not been notified. Further, the related rules for quantifying the financial impact have
not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the codes when the rules are

. notified and will record any related impact in the period in which the Codes become
effective. ' ‘ :

There are no new amendements/standards (other than above) that are notified, but not yet effective up
_ to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements.

38. Ratio Analysis and its elements

| March March % " | Reason for
S.No. | Ratio Numerator Denominator | 2023 2022 Variance variance

Increase is
mainly due to
increase in
current assets,

Current Current : trade receivable
1 | Ratio Current Asset liabilities 1 1.74 0.63 174.81% | and loan
Debt :
Equity | Shareholder :
2 | Ratio Total Debt equity 0.64 . 0.62 3.17% [ -
' Increase is on
account of
Debt increase in
service Earnings ’ ‘ ' ¢ revenue as
coverage available for compared to
3 | Ratio debt service Debt service 1.77 042 317.36% | previous year
‘ Increase in
o Average . profit as
Return on Net profit after | shareholders compared to

£

4 | Equity taxes equity _[2.26% (5.10%) (144.26%) | previous year
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March March % Reason for
S.No, | Ratio Numerator Denominator | 2023 2022 Variance | variance
: Average
Inventory(excl Increase in
uding Stores, revenue has
inventory cutlery, lead to
Turnover Cost of goods crockery, . Decrease
5| Ratio sold linen) 17.63 11.06 51.77% | inventory levels
| Trade Increasein
Receivable revenue has
turnover Avg. accounts lead to increase
6 | Ratio Net total sales receivable 27.45 18.09 51.77% | average debtors
Not applicable
to the Company
Trade considering
Payables naturs of
turnover Net credit Average Trade services of the .
7 | Ratio purchase Payable NA NA NA | Company
Increase in
revenue and
working capital
Net capital levels as
. Turnover Working compared to
8 | Ratio Net Sales capital 4.60 {5.73) {180.23 %) | previous year
Increase in
revenue as
Net Profit _ compared to
9 | Ratio Net Profit ‘Net sales 9.55% (44.89%) | (121.08%) | previous year
Increase in
Return on revenue to as
capital Capital _ compared to
10 | employed EBIT employed 5.05% 0.35% 1327.06% | previous year
: Not applicable
' to the Company
considering the
investiments are
made to.
subsidiaries
Return on Interest(Finance with long term
11 | investment | income) Investment NA NA NA | growth cutfook

(i) Eaming for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes - Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation
and otheramortizations + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc which
are non cash in nature.

(i) DebtService = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments (excluding prepayments).

(iii) Capital Emploved= Net worth+ Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability-Net Intangible asects-

Intangible assets under development

(iv) Working Capital= Currrnt Assets- Currentliabilities

(v) EBIT= Earning before interest and taxes
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39. Segment Reporting

The Company is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a
single unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the requirements of Ind
AS 108 — “Operating Segments™.

Information about geographical areas

The Company has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Company as
per the requirements of Ind AS 108 - “Operating Segments”. . S

Information about major customers

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue for the year ended March 31,
2023 and March 31, 2022.

40. Amalgamation of Begonia Hotels Private Limited & Nightingale Hotels Private Limited

During the previous year ended March 31, 2021, the National Company Law Tribunal approved the
order of scheme of amalgamation dated March 22, 2021 in respect of amalgamation of Begonia
Hotels Private Limited & Nightingale Hotels Private Limited (the Transferor Company) with Fleur
Hotels Private Limited (the Company) and the scheme was effective from March 31, 2021, The
Appointed date is April 01, 2019.The Company has made allotment of 95,57,461 equity sharfes to the
shareholders of the Transferor Company on April 20, 2021 as per the swap ratio mentioned in the
‘Scheme. The assets, liabilities and reserves of the Transferor Company as at April 01, 2019 has been
taken over at their carrying values. This transaction has been accounted as per Ind AS 103 using
the pooling of interest method and maintaining the identity of the reserves as those appeared
in the standalone financial statements of the Transferor Company. ' i

Proportion of vbting
'| equity interest Consideration transferred
acquired

Nameé of the Principal | Date of
Company Activity Acquisition

Begonia Hotels Hotel | Aprill, 2019 100% 1,46,45,682 shares of the
Private Limited Business Begonia Hoftels Private Limited
' before amalgamation stands
cancelled and 41,25,544 number
of shares has been issued on
April 20, 2021 to the|
shareholders of Begonia Hotels
Private Limited - for
consideration othter than cash.

Nightingale Hotel April 1,2019 100% 13,03,66,000 shares of the
Hotels Private Business . Nightingale  Hotels - Private
Limited Limited before amalgamation
stands cancelled and 54,31,917
number of shares had been
issued as on April 20, 2021 to
the shareholders of Nightingale
Hotels Private Limited. for
consideration other than cash.
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The detail of asset acquired and liabilities recognized as at April 1, 2019 are as follows:

Rs. in lakhs

Begonia Hotels Nightingale Hotels
Private Limited Private Limited
Assets :
Property, plant and equipment(including 1,567.95 9,014.07
intangible assets)
Financial assets-Non Current 2,301.10 1,154.56
Other Non-Current Assets 46.02 | 90.33
Inventories ' 13.67 21.42
Financial assets-Current 793.92 1,202.95
Other Current Assets : 75.28 56.03
Total Assets 4,797.95 : 11,539.36
Liabilities
Borrowings 25.64 4,947.42 .
Other financial liabilities o 373.67 . 570.97
Provisions - ' 577 | 11.56
Other current liabilities 65.87 35.95
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 37.60 -
Total Liabilities _ ' 508.54 5,585.89
Other equity 4,142.92 4,649.85
Equity share capital of Fleur Hotels Private 412.55 | 54319
Limited issued as per the swap ratio to
shareholders of the Transferor Company.
Capital Reserve A/c recognized as on April 1, (266.07) 760.43
2019 ' .

During the year Company has received Entitlement certificate for subsidy under Rajasthan Investment
Promotion Scheme (‘RIPS’) 2014 dated December 6 2022, based on which the Company shall be
eligible for 50% of the SGST paid on Aurika Hotels, Udaipur till October 29, 2026.

The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are
any material foreseeable losses,

There is no such immovable property whose title deed is not in the favor of the Company.
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Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.

Rs. in Lakhs

March3i, | March31,
- 2023 2022

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any| 563.58 266.97
supplier-as at the end of each accounting year

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Nil Nil
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with
the amounts.of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appoinied
day during each accounting year

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making Nil -Nil
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and

Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each Nil Nil
accounting year; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nil Nil
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006

There has been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company, :

During the previous year March 31, 2022, the Company had made provision of estimated stamp duty
expense of Rs. 1525.03 lakhs on amalgamation of Meringue Hotels Private Limited, Begonia Hotels
Private Limited and Nightinga’le Hotels Private Limited. This provision of stamp duty expense was a
one- time expense of non-recurring nature. As on March 31, 2023 Company is carrying provision of Rs
86.36 lakhs (refer note 17).

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company had reached an arrangement with the Lessor for
termination of lease in Chandigarh which was subsequently approved by the High Court of Punjab and
Haryana on April 18, 2022. Basis this arrangement, leasc accounting for the said property has been
terminated by derecognizing Right of Use of Assets, I.ease liability and Security deposits. Accordingly
gain on termination of lease for Rs 323.67 Lakhs has been recognized in Other Income (Refer Note 22)
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Other Statutory Information

()
(1)
(iii)

(iv)
)

(vi)

(vil)

(viii)

(a)
(b)
(ix)

[0

(b)

The Company have not traded or invested in Cx"ypto currency or Virtual currency during the
financial year.

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Incomé Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company do not have any Benami property, where anty proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benaml property under
Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988.

The Company do not have any transaction with companies struck off.

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registér_ed
with ROC beyond the statutory period. - '

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of
section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017.-

f

- During the year, the Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangements in terms of
section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordmgly, the prescribed disclosures of

' Schedule III are not required to be gwen

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or

entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermedlarles) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneﬁ01ar1es

The Company have not receivedany funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate

- Beneficiaries.
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49. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to
~ correspond with the current year classification.

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Fleur Hofels Private Limited

Aditva Madhav Keswani

\ anj ali G. Keswani

Managing Director , Director .
DIN-00002974 DIN-07208901

MA | | | | y
Sonali Manchanda - - Inder Pal Batra
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Mem. no.- F7283

Place : New Delhi
Date :May 29, 2023
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